

Draft Document

IMDRF/GRRP WG (PD1)/N71 Draft:2022

Marketing Review Report Work Instruction

AUTHORING GROUP

Good Regulatory Review Practices

9 May 2022

Preface

2 This document was produced by the International Medical Device Regulators Forum. 3 There are no restrictions on the reproduction or use of this document; however, incorporation of this document, in part or in whole, into another document, or its translation into languages other than English, does not convey or represent an endorsement of any kind by the International Medical Device Regulators Forum.

7 Copyright 2022 by the International Medical Device Regulators Forum.

8

4

5

6

1

。 Contents

10	1.	Introduction	4
11	2.	Scope	6
12	3.	References	7
13	4.	Definitions	8
14	5.	Medical Device Marketing Review Report Work Instruction	9
15		Chapter 0 Regulatory Review	11
16		Chapter 1 Regional Administrative	12
17		Chapter 2 Submission Context	15
18		Chapter 3 Non-Clinical Evidence	16
19		Chapter 4 Clinical Evidence	20
20		Chapter 5 Labeling and Promotional Material	21
21 22		Chapter 6A Quality Management System Procedures and Chapte 6B Quality Management System Device Specific Information	er 23
23	Ap	opendix A	24
24 25		Mapping of CAB Marketing Review Report Sections to the Essen Principles of Safety and Performance	itial 24
26			

26



1. Introduction

This is one document in a collection of documents produced by the International
Medical Device Regulators Forum (IMDRF) intended to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of the review process for marketing of medical devices.

31

32 Two documents, IMDRF GRRP WG/N40 - Competence, Training, and Conduct 33 Requirements for Regulatory Reviewers and IMDRF GRRP WG/N59 - Requirements 34 for Medical Device Conformity Assessment Bodies for Regulatory Authority Recognition, are complementary documents. These two documents N40 and N59 are 35 36 focused on requirements for Conformity Assessment Bodies (CABs) conducting 37 marketing review(s) of medical devices and IVD medical devices and individuals performing regulatory reviews and other related functions under their respective 38 39 medical device legislation, regulations, and procedures required in their regulatory 40 iurisdiction.

41

42 Three additional documents, IMDRF GRRP WG/N61 - Regulatory Authority 43 Assessment Method for Recognition and Surveillance of Conformity Assessment 44 Bodies Conducting Medical Device Regulatory Reviews, IMDRF GRRP WG/N63 -45 Competence and Training Requirements for Regulatory Authority Assessors of 46 Conformity Assessment Bodies Conducting Medical Device Regulatory Reviews, and 47 IMDRF GRRP WG/N66 - Assessment and Decision Process for the Recognition of a 48 Conformity Assessment Body Conducting Medical Device Regulatory Reviews are 49 complementary documents. These three documents N61, N63, and N66 are focused 50 on how Regulatory Authorities will evaluate or "assess" a CAB's compliance to the 51 requirements in the IMDRF GRRP WG/N59 and N40 documents.

52

53 In addition, IMDRF GRRP WG/N47 Essential Principles of Safety and Performance of 54 Medical Devices and IVD Medical Devices and IMDRF GRRP WG/N52 Principles of Labeling for Medical Devices and IVD Medical Devices are complementary 55 documents. These two documents N47 and N52 are focused on the fundamental 56 57 design, manufacturing, and labeling requirements for medical devices that, when met, 58 provide assurance the device is safe and performs as intended, offers significant 59 benefits to, among others, manufacturers, users, patients/consumers, and Regulatory 60 Authorities.

61 This document IMDRF/GRRP WG/NXX provides instructions regarding creation of a 62 medical device marketing review report. The marketing review report serves as a 63 written record of the CAB's determination of the extent of fulfillment of specified 64 requirements. It enables the CAB to capture in a consistent manner the evidence of a 65 manufacturer's conformity with the criteria for the marketing review and will facilitate 66 the exchange of information between Regulatory Authorities. This document expands 67 upon section 7.5.2 of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59 by articulating exactly the type of information that a "marketing review report" should include to address the 68 requirements of section 7.7 of N59. 69

70

This collection of IMDRF GRRP documents will provide the fundamental building blocks by providing a common set of requirements to be utilized by the Regulatory Authorities for the recognition and monitoring of entities that perform regulatory reviews and other related functions. It should be noted that in some jurisdictions the recognition process is called designation, notification, registration, or accreditation.

IMDRF developed these GRRP documents to encourage and support global
convergence of regulatory systems, where possible, seeking to strike a balance
between the responsibilities of Regulatory Authorities to safeguard the health of their
citizens as well as their obligations to avoid placing unnecessary burdens upon
medical device CABs or the regulated industry. 0 IMDRF Regulatory Authorities may
add additional requirements beyond this document when their legislation requires
such additions.

84

To prevent confusion between marketing review activities performed by a CAB and
the activities performed by medical device Regulatory Authority Assessors for CAB
recognition and surveillance, in this document, the latter are designated as
"assessments."

89

90

91 **2.** Scope

92 The scope of this guidance document is limited to the information that participating
 93 IMDRF Regulatory Authorities require in medical device marketing review reports, the

- 94 format of reports, and the information necessary for participating IMDRF Regulatory
- 95 Authorities to effectively use the marketing review reports in accordance with their
- 96 legislation and regulations.

97 This document applies to all medical devices except IVD medical devices and is 98 intended to identify the type of information a CAB would be expected to review during 99 evaluation of a marketing submission. Depending on the particular medical device, some of the headings and content do not apply. In those cases, justifications should 100 101 be provided for their exclusion. For example, Essential Principle 6.5.1 describes an essential principle of safety and performance "where a medical device incorporates, 102 as an integral part, a substance which, if used separately may be considered to be a 103 medicinal product/drug as defined in the relevant legislation that applies in that RA 104 and which is liable to act upon the body with action ancillary to that of the medical 105 device." Given variability in definitions and review practices across jurisdictions, this 106 document does not establish a regulatory pathway or describe exactly what 107 108 information should be reviewed for these types of products. In addition, the following are out of scope for this document; refer to each specific regulator for guidance 109 regarding the below. 110

- Submissions requesting approval to conduct clinical trials.
- Surveillance activities (e.g., periodic sampling and/or reports to ensure continued safety and performance).
- 114

3. References

116	IMDRF GRRP WG/N40:2017 Competence, Training, and Conduct
117	Requirements for Regulatory Reviewers
118	 IMDRF GRRP WG/N47:2018 Essential Principles of Safety and
119	Performance of Medical Devices and IVD Medical Devices
120	 IMDRF Standards WG/N51:2018 Optimizing Standards for Regulatory
121	Use
122	 IMDRF GRRP WG/N52:2019 Principles of Labeling for Medical Devices
123	and IVD Medical Devices
124	 IMDRF GRRP WG/N59: 2020 Requirements for Medical Device
125	Conformity Assessment Bodies for Regulatory Authority Recognition
126	 IMDRF GRRP WG/N61: 2020 Regulatory Authority Assessment Method
127	for Recognition and Surveillance of Conformity Assessment Bodies
128	Conducting Medical Device Regulatory Reviews
129	 IMDRF GRRP WG/N63: 2020 Competence and Training Requirements
130	for Regulatory Authority Assessors of Conformity Assessment Bodies
131	Conducting Medical Device Regulatory Reviews
132	 IMDRF GRRP WG/N66: 2021 Assessment and Decision Process for the
133	Recognition of a Conformity Assessment Body Conducting Medical
134	Device Regulatory Reviews
135	 IMDRF/RPS WG/N9 FINAL:2019 (Edition 3) Non-In Vitro Diagnostic
136	Device Market Authorization Table of Contents (nIVDMAToC)
137	• ISO/IEC 17065:2012 Conformity assessment — Requirements for bodies
138	certifying products, processes, and services
139	GHTF/SG1/N055:2009 Definition of the Terms Manufacturer, Authorized
140	Representative, Distributor, and Importer
	· · · · · ·



141 **4. Definitions**

- 142 All definitions from referenced IMDRF documents apply to this document, plus the
- 143 following (the underlined terms are previously defined):
- 144 *Marketing Review Report*: the record of a <u>regulatory review</u> of a <u>marketing submission</u>
- 145 for a medical device or IVD medical device.
- 146

Medical Device Marketing Review Report Work Instruction

150 Instructions for completing each section of the Medical Device Marketing Review 151 Report are provided below. The section headings mirror those of IMDRF/RPS WG/N9 152 for consistency between information included in the marketing submission and documentation of the CAB's review of that submission. The heading "Chapter 0" has 153 154 been added for information not included in Chapters 1-6 of N9; that is, for information 155 relevant to the medical device marketing review report, but not expected to be included in the marketing submission itself. Please note the following, which apply to 156 157 all sections of the report: 158 159 Documenting the CAB's Assessment 160 In many sections, the marketing review report should include not only a summary of the information provided by the manufacturer regarding the 161 section topic, but also an assessment by the CAB of the acceptability of this 162 163 information.

165 This assessment should:

- Document the CAB's final opinion on all information provided by the manufacturer related to the given section topic. That is, any information provided by the manufacturer either within the initial submission or in response to interactions with the CAB should be included in the assessment.
 - Provide a rationale for why the totality of information provided is or is not acceptable with respect to the following questions.
 - Did the provided information demonstrate conformity with the applicable Essential Principles?
 - Were conclusions supported by the results/information presented?
 - Are all issues (e.g., questions/concerns identified during the review that required interaction/communication with the manufacturer) addressed?
 - Is there any discrepancy within the manufacturer's conclusions?
- Describe any nonconformities remaining at the end of review that prevent a positive recommendation from the CAB.
 - Note any follow up items that the manufacturer has committed to conduct (e.g., product stability studies).

184 185

164

166

167 168

169

170

171

172 173

174

175

176

177

178 179

180

181

182

183

This assessment should **not** include a detailed listing and history of all interactions with the manufacturer on a specific topic. Questions sent to the manufacturer by the CAB and responses (including data and corrective action plan(s)) provided by the manufacturer to address the CAB's concerns should be provided either within the body of the report or as an appendix.

191

192 • Determining Review Expectations

193

- 194 Review expectations for marketing submissions depend on a number of factors195 including:
- 196 Risk classification of device type;
- 197 o Risks identified for the specific device;
 198 o Novelty and complexity of the specific device;
- 198 Novelty and complexity of the specific device;
- Conformity assessment procedure applied by the manufacturer; and
 IMDRF jurisdiction for which marketing authorization is sought.
- 200

For example, a CAB may be expected to review the labeling components of a higher risk device in more detail compared to the review of a lower risk device. As another example, one regulatory authority may expect a review of all general Quality System procedures for high risk devices, while another may accept a specific type of

- 206 certificate to indicate sufficient Quality System procedures.
- 207

208 This document is comprehensive in scope in that, consistent with IMDRF/RPS 209 WG/N9, it includes both common (IMDRF) and regional content. As a consequence, 210 not all headings are relevant or reviewed to the same extent for all submission types, all device types, and/or all IMDRF jurisdictions. The relevance of each section and the 211 212 extent of review depends on the jurisdiction for which marketing authorization is 213 sought. CABs are required to review materials published by individual RAs regarding review expectations (e.g., recognized standards and guidance) specific to submission 214 types and/or device types as well as to contact an RA if there are questions about 215 216 review expectations during the review.

- 217
- 218 Use of "N/A"
- 219

"N/A" should not be used in the marketing review report without an accompanying
rationale. For example, a given section may be "N/A" based on the type of device
(e.g., a device that does not include software) or based on the jurisdictions for which
marketing authorization is sought (e.g., detailed quality management procedures may
not be required for 510(k) submissions to the U.S. FDA). In these cases, "N/A" may be
included in a section, but a rationale should also be provided as to why the section is
not applicable.

- 227
- 228 Screening Review
- 229

Section 7.3 of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59 indicates that a CAB performs a screening
 review prior to evaluating the marketing submission. This report does not differentiate

between a screening review and an evaluation. Instead, this report includes all

information that a regulatory authority would expect to see from a CAB after a

complete assessment of the marketing submission (including both screening andevaluation).

236 Chapter 0 Regulatory Review

237 0.1 Information about the Conformity Assessment Body

The report should include the name, full address, contact information, and any identification numbers relevant to the CAB performing the regulatory review. The report should also indicate the aspects of the CAB's scope of recognition that are relevant to the review conducted. The report should specifically confirm that the CAB's scope of recognition at the time of the regulatory review was consistent with the scope of the review conducted.

244 0.2 Scope of Regulatory Review

245 The report should include a summary statement that specifically indicates the scope of 246 regulatory review consistent with section 7.7.3(a) of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59. At a 247 minimum, the summary should include the device name, device type, manufacturer 248 name, and jurisdictions for which marketing authorization is sought as well as 249 indication of whether the submission is an initial submission or includes changes to a 250 model of the device already authorized for marketing. If the marketing submission 251 includes many different models or configurations, the report should include a discussion as to whether the submission and its review outcome are representative of 252 253 all of the devices included in the submission. For example, a clinical monitoring system might include a variety of features and configurations with differing levels of 254 255 complexity and risk. The report should indicate with supporting rationale, which 256 features and configurations are within the scope of the regulatory review.

257

262

Information relevant to this section of the report may be found in the following sectionsof IMDRF/RPS WG/N9:

- 1.01 ("Cover Letter")
- 1.04 ("Application Form/Administrative Information")
 - 1.05 ("Listing of Device(s)")
- 2.02 ("General Summary of Submission")

264 0.3 Relevant Dates

The report should include the dates the submission was received by the CAB and the date the CAB completed their review.



267 0.4 Recommendation

The report should include a certification and/or recommendation as to whether, based on the review of provided documentation, the device conforms or does not conform to all applicable Essential Principles and other regulatory requirements. Per section 7.7.3(a) of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59, the certification and/or recommendation should include clear identification of the subject medical device and its use (scope of certification).

.

274 0.5 Summary of Review

The report should include a high-level summary of the review including device name,
indications for use, and highlights of the review. A detailed listing of history of
interactions with the manufacturer should be included (as an appendix or within the
body of the document) with the report. The report should also include, per section
7.7.3(a) of IMDRF/GRRP WGN59, a discussion of the review criteria used to assess
the regulatory submission.

Comment should be provided regarding whether the Summary and Certifications for
 Premarket Submissions provided by the manufacturer are accurate and acceptable
 based on the requirements in IMDRF/RPS WG/N9 section 2.03.

284 0.6 Review Team

The report should include a listing of the names, titles, and roles of each individual who assessed the file or provided signatory authority.

287 0.7 External Consultations

288 The report should identify any consultations obtained during regulatory review from 289 external resources, as defined in Section 6.2 of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59 and Section 6.2.4 of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N61. The report should clearly indicate the rationale for 290 291 obtaining external consultation, the expertise of the external consultant, the 292 information provided to and received from the external consultant, and how the 293 external consultation impacted the overall regulatory review. For example, in the 294 course of reviewing a product that incorporates both medical device component(s) 295 and a medicinal/drug substance, a CAB may choose to obtain external consultation regarding the drug/medicinal substance in order to inform their review of the medical 296 device component(s). 297

298 Chapter 1 Regional Administrative

- 299 **1.01 Cover Letter**
- 300 (A) Submission Type and Number
- 301 The report should include the type of submission submitted by the manufacturer.
- 302 Refer to each specific regulator for applicable submission types.

- 303 If available, the report should also include the submission number for each identifying
- jurisdiction. This information may not be available at the time of the CAB review given
- that, in some jurisdictions, the CAB review precedes the review by the regulatory
 authority and, therefore, assignment of a submission number by the regulatory
- 307 authority. In these cases, the identifying number, if any, assigned by the CAB itself for
- 308 tracking purposes should be provided for reference.
- Information relevant to this section of the report may also be found in IMDRF/RPS
 WG/N9 section 1.04 ("Application Form/Administrative Information").
- 311 (B) Device Classification and Identification Information
- The report should include the device classification and any associated identifiers required for the applicable jurisdictions. Comment should be provided regarding the degree to which the information provided supports the proposed classification per section 7.4.2 of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59.
- 316
- 317 Information relevant to this section of the report may also be found in section 1.04
- 318 ("Application Form/Administrative Information").
- 319
- 320 (C) Applicable Jurisdictions
- 321 The report should include the jurisdictions for which marketing authorization is sought.

322 **1.02 Submission Table of Contents**

N/A- the report does not need to include the Table of Contents provided in themarketing submission.

325 1.03 List of Terms/Acronyms

N/A- the report does not need to include the list of terms/acronyms provided in the
 marketing submission. However, the first time an acronym or term is used in the
 report, the definition should be provided.

329 1.04 Application Form/Administrative Information

- 330 The report should include the name, full address, any identification numbers, and 331 primary contact information for the applicant, manufacturer, authorized representative,
- etc. as required by the jurisdictions for which marketing authorization is sought.
- 333 **1.05 Listing of Devices**
- 334 The report should list all devices for which marketing authorization is sought.

1.06 Quality Management System, Full Quality System or Other Regulatory Certificates

- 337 The report should indicate whether the applicable quality management system, full
- 338 quality system, or other regulatory certificates were provided and acceptable based on
- the jurisdictions for which marketing authorization is sought.

340

- 341 This section of the report should also list the name(s), location(s), and scope(s)/role(s)
- 342 of each manufacturing facility and/or supplier for the medical device, using the
- relevant information provided in Chapter 6A of the marketing submission. The report
- 344 should also include a description of any relationship between facilities when there is 345 more than one involved in the manufacturing process. Note that (per
- 346 GHTF/SG1/N055:2009. Definition of the Terms Manufacturer. Authorized
- 347 *Representative, Distributor, and Importer*) a manufacturing facility includes locations
- 348 with responsibility for design and/or manufacture.
- 349

350 1.07 Free Sale Certificate/Certificate of Marketing Authorization

The report should indicate whether and what free sale certificates/certificates of marketing authorization are available and from which regulatory jurisdiction(s).

353 1.08 Expedited Review Documentation

The report should indicate whether expedited review has been requested and/or granted by the CAB (see section 4.2.6 of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59) and/or a regulatory authority and what associated supporting documentation was included.

357 1.09 User Fees

N/A- User fee documentation review per this section is conducted by the regulatoryauthority, not by the CAB.

360 1.10 Pre-Submission Correspondence and Previous Regulator 361 Interactions

The report should include how previous regulator interactions informed the review of the submission. This includes both a summary of previous interactions as well as the impact on review considerations (e.g., if specific testing is expected for a particular jurisdiction based on feedback previously provided by that regulatory authority).

366 1.11 Acceptance for Review Checklist

The report should indicate what acceptance for review checklist information was provided in the marketing submission, whether the information was acceptable, and how the information impacted the review conducted.

370 1.12 Statements/Certifications/Declarations of Conformity

- 371 The report should indicate what statements/certifications/declarations of conformity
- were provided in the marketing submission, whether the information was acceptable,
 and how the information impacted the review conducted.



374 1.13 Letters of Reference

The report should include reference to any applications related to the subject submission (e.g., regional document references (e.g., Master Files) or predicate device applications). Any assessment in the remainder of the report should clearly indicate if comments and information are provided relative to the marketing submission or a referenced application and, if so, which referenced application. In addition, review of any referenced application is limited to the scope of the letter of reference provided by the manufacturer.

382 1.14 Letters of Authorization

The report should indicate whether the applicable letters of authorization were provided based on the jurisdictions for which marketing authorization is sought.

385 1.15 Other Regional Administrative Information

The report should include an assessment of any other non-clinical evidence provided in the marketing submission.

388 Chapter 2 Submission Context

389 2.01 Chapter Table of Contents

N/A- the report does not need to include the Chapter Table of Contents provided inthe marketing submission.

392 2.02 General Summary of Submission

N/A- information from this section, along with analysis of its acceptability and review
 conclusions, should be incorporated into the Scope and Summary of Regulatory
 Review sections in Chapter 0.

396 2.03 Summary and Certifications for Premarket Submissions

The report should indicate whether the applicable summary and certifications for
 premarket submissions were provided and acceptable based on the jurisdictions for
 which marketing authorization is sought.

400 2.04 Device Description

The report should include a summary description of the device, its principles of
 operation, packaging, history of development, and reference and comparison to
 similar and/or previous generations of device.

404 2.05 Indications for Use and/or Intended Use, and 405 Contraindications

The report should include the indications for use, intended use, intended use
environment, intended patient population, intended users, and any contraindications
for use. Per section 7.4.3 of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59, the CAB should ensure that the
marketing submission supports the proposed intended use of the medical device.

410 2.06 Global Market History

The report should include the global market history of the device including where the device is currently authorized to be marketed and the experience in those region(s) (e.g., any incidents and/or recalls). Distinction should be made between information provided by the manufacturer and obtained by CAB reviewer(s) during research of relevant regulator databases. Relevant regulatory databases should be consulted

415 based on the jurisdiction for which marketing authorization is sought.

417

418 Comment should be provided regarding whether the global marketing history raises

- 419 any specific concerns for the regulatory review (e.g., previous recalls may result in
- 420 need to ascertain whether specific failure modes have been mitigated).

421 2.07 Other Submission Context Information

The report should include an assessment of any other submission context informationprovided in the marketing submission.

424 Chapter 3 Non-Clinical Evidence

425 **3.01 Chapter Table of Contents**

N/A- the report does not need to include the Chapter Table of Contents provided inthe marketing submission.

428 3.02 Risk Management

The report should include an assessment of the acceptability of the manufacturer's
risk management approach including an assessment of whether the risk management
plan was appropriate, whether all expected risks were appropriately identified and
mitigated, and whether the approach is consistent with relevant Essential Principles
(see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements. Per section 7.4.4 of IMDRF/GRRP
WG/N59, the results of an audit conducted as part of a marketing certification scheme

435 should be considered when the CAB conducts its review of the marketing submission.

436

Comment should be provided regarding whether the review of the risk management
activities raises any specific concerns for the regulatory review (e.g., risks mitigated
with non-clinical studies require assessment of the specific methods and results of

440 those studies).

441 **3.03 Essential Principles (EP) Checklist**

442 Per section 7.7.2 of IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59, the CAB should review the marketing 443 submission with respect to the requirements of the relevant regulatory authority. To 444 document this review, the report should include an assessment of the acceptability of 445 the manufacturer's identification of applicable Essential Principles and regulatory 446 requirements on well on the methods used to demonstrate conformity to each

requirements as well as the methods used to demonstrate conformity to each.

447 Specific attention should be paid to any Essential Principle or regulatory requirement

- 448 deemed not applicable by the manufacturer.
- 449



450 Comment should be provided as to whether the review of the Essential Principles and

regulatory requirements raises any specific concerns for the regulatory review (e.g.,
 methods used to demonstrate conformity for each Essential Principle may indicate

453 need for particular review in other sections of the submission).

454 3.04 Standards

The report should indicate the key standards and guidance documents used by the manufacturer to support their marketing submission. The report should also include the CAB's assessment of whether all appropriate standards and guidance documents were identified and used by the manufacturer in order to address the applicable regulatory requirements.

460 3.05 Non-clinical Studies

461 Standards and state of the art guidance are valuable resources in determining 462 whether appropriate non-clinical studies have been conducted and whether or not the 463 evidence provided demonstrates conformity to the relevant Essential Principles and 464 regulatory requirements. Regulatory authorities may provide information on the 465 standards recognized and state of the art guidance issued by jurisdiction. If available, 466 this information should be consulted and considered during review of information 467 regarding non-clinical studies.

468

469 In some jurisdictions, the accreditation of the testing laboratory conducting the non-

- 470 clinical study impacts the review of the study methods and results. Testing laboratory471 accreditation should be considered as appropriate for each jurisdiction.
- 472

473 3.05.01 Physical and Mechanical Characterization

474 The report should include an assessment of the evidence to support physical and 475 mechanical characterization including whether or not the information provided

476 demonstrates conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and 477 regulatory reguirements.

478

479 3.05.02 Chemical/Material Characterization

The report should include an assessment of the evidence to support chemical/material
characterization including whether or not the information provided demonstrates
conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory
requirements.

484

485 3.05.03 Electrical Systems: Safety, Mechanical, and Environmental Protection 486 and Electromagnetic Compatibility

- 487 The report should include an assessment of the evidence to support electrical
- 488 systems including whether or not the information provided demonstrates conformity
- 489 with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements.
- 490



491 Note that review of testing to support Magnetic Resonance (MR) conditional labeling 492 and safety during anticipated conditions of use should be included in this section of

493 the report. This includes assessment of

494

- 495 Magnetically induced displacement force ٠ 496 Magnetically induced torque • 497 Extent of imaging artifacts • 498 • Radiofrequency (RF)-induced heating or heating induced by time-varying 499 magnetic field gradients Gradient-induced vibration 500 • Gradient-induced extrinsic electrical potential 501 • Rectification of RF pulses from MR exams 502 • 503 504 3.05.04 Radiation Safety 505 The report should include an assessment of the studies to support radiation safety 506 including whether or not the information provided demonstrates conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements. 507 508 509 3.05.05Software/Firmware 510 The report should include an assessment of the information provided to support the
 - 511 use of any software/firmware including whether or not the information demonstrates
 - conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory 512
 - 513 requirements. Note that this section includes review and assessment of
 - 514
 - 515 • Section 3.05.05.01 (software/firmware description),
 - 516 Section 3.05.05.02 (hazard analysis), •
 - 517 Section 3.05.05.03 (software requirement specification), •
 - Section 3.05.05.04 (architecture design chart), 518 •
 - 519 Section 3.05.05.05 (software design specification), •
- 520 Section 3.05.05.06 (traceability analysis), •
- Section 3.05.05.07 (software development environment description). 521 •
 - Section 3.05.05.08 (software verification and validation), •
- Section 3.05.05.09 (revision level history), 523 •
- 524 Section 3.05.05.10 (unresolved anomalies (bugs or defects)), •
- 525 Section 3.05.05.11 (cybersecurity), and • 526
 - Section 3.05.05.12 (interoperability). •
- 527

522

528 3.05.06 Biocompatibility and Toxicology Evaluation

- 529 The report should include an assessment of the evidence to support biocompatibility
- 530 and assess toxicology including whether or not the information provided demonstrates 531 conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory
- 532 requirements.
- 533



534 3.05.07Non-Material-Mediated Pyrogenicity

535 The report should include an assessment of the evidence to support pyrogenicity 536 evaluation, such as endotoxin levels, including whether or not the information provided 537 demonstrates conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and 538 regulatory requirements.

539

540 3.05.08 Safety of Materials of Biological Origin

541 The report should include an assessment of the evaluations performed to demonstrate 542 the safety of materials of biological origin. This includes assessment of whether or not

the information provided demonstrates conformity with the relevant Essential

544 Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements.

545

546 **3.05.09 Sterilization Validation**

547 The report should include an assessment of the evidence supporting sterility of the 548 device including whether or not the information provided demonstrates conformity with 549 the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements. Note

- 550 that this section includes review and assessment of
- 551
- Section 3.05.09.01 (end-user sterilization),
- Section 3.05.09.02 (manufacturer sterilization validation),
- Section 3.05.09.03 (residual toxicity),
- Section 3.05.09.04 (cleaning and disinfection validation), and
- Section 3.05.09.05 (reprocessing of single use devices, validation data).
- 557

558 3.05.10 Animal Testing

559 The report should include an assessment of the animal testing including whether or

- not the studies demonstrate conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see
 Appendix A) and regulatory requirements.
- 562

563 3.05.11 Usability/Human Factors

564 The report should include an assessment of the studies assessing the instructions 565 and/or device design relevant to the intended user in terms of impact of human 566 behavior, abilities, limitations, and other characteristics on the ability of the device to 567 perform as intended including whether or not the information provided demonstrates 568 conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory 569 requirements.

570 3.06 Non-clinical Bibliography

571 The report should include a summary of the sources included in the non-clinical

572 bibliography. This includes an assessment of whether or not the sources provide

information that demonstrates conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (seeAppendix A) and regulatory requirements.

575 **3.07 Expiration Period and Packaging Validation**

576 The report should include an assessment of the expiration period/shelf life and 577 packaging validation studies including whether or not the results demonstrate 578 conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory 579 requirements. Note that this section includes review and assessment of

- 580
- Section 3.07.01 (product stability), and
- Section 3.07.02 (packaging validation).

583 3.08 Other Non-clinical Evidence

584 The report should include an assessment of any other non-clinical evidence provided 585 in the marketing submission.

586 Chapter 4 Clinical Evidence

587 4.01 Chapter Table of Contents

588 N/A- the report does not need to include the Chapter Table of Contents provided in589 the marketing submission.

590 4.02 Overall Clinical Evidence Summary

The report should include a summary and assessment of the clinical evidence
 provided to demonstrate conformity with the relevant Essential Principles (see
 Appendix A) and regulatory requirements. This includes any clinical studies (pre-

- and/or post-market) conducted by the manufacturer and/or results of a literaturereview.
- 596

597 Comment should be provided on whether the clinical evidence provided is

598 representative of the device and indications for use subject in the submission as well 599 as the qualifications of any persons involved in clinical evidence evaluation.

600 4.03 Informed Consent Information

601 The report should indicate whether informed consent forms or any other information 602 related to informed consent of patients was provided and acceptable based on the 603 requirements for marketing authorization in the jurisdiction for which marketing 604 authorization is sought.



605 4.04 Investigators Sites and IRB Contact Information

606 The report should indicate whether investigator sites and IRB contact information were 607 provided and acceptable based on the requirements for marketing authorization in the 608 jurisdiction for which marketing authorization is sought.

609 4.05 Other Clinical Evidence

610 The report should include an assessment of any other clinical evidence provided in

611 the marketing submission.

612 Chapter 5 Labeling and Promotional Material

613 In addition to the regulatory requirements of a given jurisdiction, information regarding

- 614 expectations for labeling may be found not only in IMDRF/GRRP WG/N47, but also
- 615 the separate Principles of Labelling for Medical Devices and IVD Medical Devices
- 616 IMDRF document (IMDRF/GRRP WG/N52). Specific attention should be paid to
- 617 whether all product labeling (packaging, IFU, etc) is consistent with information (e.g.,
- 618 the methods and results from the non-clinical and clinical evidence) submitted in the
- 619 marketing submission. Note that advertising and promotional materials may be
- 620 considered elements of labeling in some jurisdictions, but they are outside the scope 621 of this document. Individual jurisdictions may have their own regulations or
- 622 requirements regarding other labeling elements or advertising and promotional
- 623 materials. If necessary, this section can also be used to discuss any observations
- related to jurisdiction-specific regulations or requirements involving other labeling
- 625 elements or advertising and promotional materials.

626 5.01 Chapter Table of Contents

N/A- the report does not need to include the Chapter Table of Contents provided inthe marketing submission.

629 5.02 Product/Package Labels

- 630 The report should include a description of the product/package labels materials
- 631 provided by the manufacturer and an assessment of whether they are in conformance
- 632 with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements.

633 **5.03 Package Insert/Instructions for Use**

- The report should include a description of the package insert/instructions for use
- 635 provided by the manufacturer and an assessment of whether they are in conformance
- 636 with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements.

637 5.04 E-Labeling

The report should include a description of the e-labeling provided by the manufacturer
 and an assessment of whether its format, availability, and change management are in
 conformance with regulatory requirements.



641 **5.05 Physician Labeling**

642 The report should include a description of the physician labeling provided by the 643 manufacturer and an assessment of whether it is in conformance with the relevant

644 Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements.

645 5.06 Patient Labeling

The report should include a description of the patient labeling provided by the
manufacturer and an assessment of whether it is in conformance with the relevant
Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements. Specific attention
should be paid to whether the materials can be easily comprehended and correctly
used by the user (see Section 3.05.11), particularly for devices intended to be used by
lay users and not physicians.

652 5.07 Technical and/or Operators Manual

The report should include a description of the technical and/or operators manual
 provided by the manufacturer and an assessment of whether it is in conformance with
 the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements.

656 5.08 Patient File Stickers/Cards and Implant Registration Cards

The report should include a description of the patient file stickers/cards and implant
registration cards provided by the manufacturer and an assessment of whether they
are in conformance with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and
regulatory requirements.

661 5.09 Product Brochures

The report should include a description of the product brochures provided by the manufacturer and an assessment of whether they are in conformance with the relevant Essential Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements. Specific attention should be paid to whether the materials can be easily comprehended and correctly used by the user (see Section 3.05.11), particularly for devices intended to be used by lay users and not physicians, and as to whether the claims are consistent with the indications for use and information provided in the marketing submission.

669 5.10 Other Labeling

- 670 The report should include an assessment of any other labeling provided in the
- 671 marketing submission.



Chapter 6A Quality Management System Procedures and Chapter 6B Quality Management System Device Specific Information

675 The report should include a summary and assessment of quality management system 676 procedures and device specific information provided in the marketing submission 677 including whether the procedures and information conform to relevant Essential 678 Principles (see Appendix A) and regulatory requirements. At a minimum, the report should include a summary of overall manufacturing methods as well as a listing of the 679 680 addresses and contact information as well as roles of all sites where the device or its components are manufactured. The report should include an assessment of whether 681 the information provided is acceptable or raises any concerns regarding other aspects 682 683 of the regulatory review.

- 684
- 685 Note that per IMDRF/GRRP WG/N59:
- 686
- Section 7.4.4: "If the CAB conducted an audit or receives the results of an audit as part of the marketing certification scheme, the CAB shall ensure that the audit results support the marketing submission."
- Section 7.5.1: "If the relevant Regulatory Authority requires QMS/GMP
 certification prior to marketing and an audit was not part of the CAB's
 evaluation, the CAB shall ensure that the manufacturer holds appropriate
 QMS/GMP certification relevant to the medical device under review."
- 694

695



696 Appendix A

Mapping of CAB Marketing Review Report Sections to the Essential Principles of Safety and Performance

699 700 701	The below table indicates which Essential Principles of Safety and Performance as established in IMDRF/GRRP WG/N47 are primarily reviewed in which sections of the CAB marketing review report.	
702		
703 704 705 706 707 708	one section. For brevity, only the primary Essential Principles are listed. For examp a discussion of whether or not conformity has been demonstrated relative to Esser Principle 5.1.5 regarding elimination or reduction of risks related to use may be reviewed and discussed within any or all of the below CAB marketing review report	
709		
710 711 712 713 714 715	 4.7 ("Information about Essential Principles and Regulatory Requirements") 4.8 ("Information about Risk Management") 4.9 (J) ("Animal Testing") 4.9 (K) ("Usability/Human Factors") 4.10 ("Information about Clinical Evidence") 4.11 ("Information about Labeling") 	
716		

The table, however, only lists Essential Principle 5.1.5 as being primarily reviewed
within section 4.8 of the CAB marketing review report. Where no primary section could
be identified for review of an Essential Principles, the Essential Principle is listed as
being reviewed in all sections (i.e., by reviewing the totality of data provided by the
manufacturer).

- 722
- 723

CAB Marketing Review Report Section	Essential Principle
All - Totality of Review	5.1.1
	5.1.6
	5.1.9
	5.5.1
	5.5.2
	5.5.5
	5.5.8
	5.9.1



CAB Marketing Review Report Section		Essential Principle
		6.1.2
		6.5.1
Chapter 0 Regulatory Review		None
Chapter 1 Regional Administrative		None
Chapter 2 Submission Context		None
Chapter 3 Non-Clinical		
Evidence	3.01 Chapter Table of Contents	None
	3.02 Risk Management 3.03 Essential Principles (EP)	5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.5.4 5.5.6 5.7.1 6.3.1
	Checklist	All
	3.04 Standards	All
	3.05 Non-clinical Studies	Refer to specific subsection
	3.05.01 Physical and Mechanical Characterization	5.3.1 5.3.4
	3.05.02 Chemical/Material Characterization	5.3.1
	3.05.03 Electrical Systems: Safety, Mechanical, and Environmental Protection and Electromagnetic Compatibility	5.3.1 5.5.3 5.6.1 5.6.2 5.6.3

CAB Marketing Review Report Section		Essential Principle
		5.6.4 5.6.5 5.7.2 5.7.3 5.7.4 5.7.5 5.7.6
		5.7.7
	3.05.04 Radiation Safety	5.11.1 5.11.2 5.11.3 5.11.4 5.11.5 5.11.6 6.2.1 6.2.2
	3.05.05 Software/Firmware	5.8.1 5.8.2 5.8.3 5.8.4 5.8.5
	3.05.06 Biocompatibility and Toxicology Evaluation	5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 6.1.1 6.1.3
	3.05.07 Non-Material-Mediated Pyrogenicity	5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3
	3.05.08 Safety of Materials of Biological Origin	5.13.1 5.13.2 5.13.3
	3.05.09 Sterilization Validation	5.1.7

IMDRF International Medical Device Regulators Forum

CAB Marketing Review Report Section		Essential Principle
		5.4.1 5.4.2 5.4.3 5.4.4 5.4.5 5.4.6
	3.05.10 Animal Testing	Depends upon objectives of animal testing
	3.05.11 Usability/Human Factors	5.3.5 5.5.7 5.12.1 5.12.2 5.12.3 6.3.2 6.4.1 6.4.2
	3.06 Non-clinical Bibliography	Depends upon contents of sources
	3.07 Expiration Period and Package Validation	5.1.7 5.1.8 5.4.2 5.4.3 5.4.4 5.4.5 5.4.6
	3.08 Other Non-clinical Evidence	Depends upon information provided
Chapter 4 Clinical Evidence	4.01 Chapter Table of Contents	None

CAB Marketing Review Report Section		Essential Principle
	4.02 Overall Clinical Evidence	5.2.1 5.2.2
	4.03 Informed Consent Information	5.2.1 5.2.2
	4.04 Investigator Sites and IRB Contact Information	5.2.1 5.2.2
	4.05 Other Clinical Evidence	Depends upon information provided
Chapter 5 Labeling and		
Promotional Material	5.01 Chapter Table of Contents	None
	5.02 Product/Package Labels	5.4.7 5.10.1
	5.03 Package Insert/Instructions for Use	5.1.4 5.4.7 5.10.1
	5.04 E-Labeling	5.1.4 5.4.7 5.10.1
	5.05 Physician Labeling	5.1.4 5.4.7 5.10.1
	5.06 Patient Labeling	5.1.4 5.4.7 5.10.1
	5.07 Technical/Operator Manual	5.1.4 5.4.7 5.10.1
	5.08 Patient File Stickers/Cards and Implant Registration Cards	5.4.7 5.10.1

IMDRF International Medical Device Regulators Forum

CAB Marketing Review Report Section		Essential Principle
	5.09 Product Brochures	5.4.7 5.10.1
	5.10 Other Labeling	Depends upon information provided
Chapter 6A Quality Management System Procedures and Chapter 6B Quality Management System Device Specific Information	All	4.0





IMDRF International Medical Device Regulators Forum

Please visit our website for more details.

www.imdrf.org

Disclaimer

This document was produced by the International Medical Device Regulators Forum. There are no restrictions on the reproduction or use of this document; however, incorporation of this document, in part or in whole, into another document, or its translation into languages other than English, does not convey or represent an endorsement of any kind by the International Medical Device Regulators Forum.

Copyright 2021 by the International Medical Device Regulators Forum.